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7.5, STRATSEGIC BOBING SURVEC
' (PACIFIC)
/ APO #2354

¢/0 POSTMASTER. Sall FhalilCISCO

IHTER OGATICH 0. 249 PIACH: Tokyo
DATS 27 Getcecber 1045
o8 Oectober 124 O
1 Novemter 1945

Division of Origint Military Analysis.
Sub ject: Japanese Army air Force and the Prnilippine Campailsn
Perscnnel interrogated and back,round of each!

Coleonel MATSUMaX, M., a regular officer of the Japanese Army, was
senior Staffi Officer, 4th Air army, Manila, from May, 1944, to Janu--
ary 19453 Staff Officer, Air Hq, Training »ection, Tokyo, from Janu-
ary 1945, to March, 19453 Staff Ofiicer, Air General aArmy, lraining
Section, Tokyo, from mMarch 1945, to Auzust, 19483 Secretary ~f War
ministry, Tolyo, from Ausust, 1945 to date.

Major MAnUTA, F,, a regular officer of the Japanese Army, loXOoTrczuwa
(trainec) from February, 1933 to January, 193<; lst Fk, Instructor

at militar, Academy, Instructor at akeno air ochool, 5 madron Com-
cander of B«th Fn, Instructor again at Akeno from 193« to 1lU4al; stafl
Officers dSchool, from Decembar, 1942 to Au,ust, 1943; Trainin. dectloen,
Koku Horbu, from aAugust, 1943 to april, 1945; akeno Hikotal, from
April, 1945 to June, 1945; Staff Officer, 20th F.C0., July and aususv
1045,

dhere interviewed: MEIJI zuilaing, Room 728,
Interropators: Lt. Comdr. Aikin, Major McZlwain, and Lt. Comdr. rield.

Allied Interprcters: Lt Cemdr. wichols, Uduk, Lt. Comdr. duggine, Major
Saively, Lt. (J.G.) Brown, Mr. baoki.

Allied Officers Present: Najor Braucher, Captain Logen, Captain Hasking,
Lt. Dalfrey.

OUMIAKY
Culunel wmatsumae was interrc.ated upor the following sub jects:
l. Japancse army aircraft louses in the <nd Pnilippines Campalign.
S. Jdepabse piansd ana strotegy in tiie 2ad Prilippines vampalegl.
o« The Japanese rilot Trainine Program.

4, Ihe dingaporc Carpai.n.

Colonel vatsumae's statements with respect to losses wore mase largely
from nemory anc further interrogation may be necessary in order to recol
cile them wiul. other infurmation. In addition, Colonel latsumae 1is assist—
in. in preparin,. the answers %o the Militar, an.lysis sivision question-

aires relative to the Singzrore and the Philip.ines campaigns and will
supplement the inforration siven in this interrog.tioa.

Major Maruta assisted Colcnel Matsumae in answering questions apout
the Japanese trainia. pro..ram. :
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RELNFORCEMENT OF THE PELLIPP I.i&o AND JAPAWESE

W————.—

LOSoES IN THE PHILIPPIidS. CAMPALUN

Col., iatsumae recénstfusted from memory the following tables of Japan-
ese Army aircraft strength, losses,  rpinforcenments and replacements from
<20 Qctober_tp_the epdﬁof.the Philippines Campaigns

L STHANGTE

Strenffh* . . Total éﬁe;éfion;i Total Fighters Operational Fighters
liid-summer 1944 s ¢ oEeRT Lk
sarly Sept (prior oy o o
to 9th) 300 200
10 October - &00..+, - 200 L Aan | | |
20 Qctober 300 150 %, : 0
1 December 300 150 100 - 75
15 December. > (A & s 1 5 S S ™ iy T . | -
1 January . 120 =% w4 BY. SR X g T | | SR
5 Magel . .o v 10-12-, .« ;5—5

| LOSSS

Total hf'.dnf~TotalFiggtefs _ﬁuibi@es

October 800 z 207
November | 800/1000 . 600 - 150
December - 600 400 S : ¢ 0
January IERT - P A 7L 120

sote: Col. sateumae stated that throu.hout. the campaign, about one-
third of the losses represented aireraft.shot down, one-third those
destroyed on the ,round, and one-third those lost for other reasons. O i
cide planes were classified as planes lost in combat. | v -

ALLOCATIONS AxD sBPLACEWSNTS

Planee(l) Planes Planes Planes lieplacement siew Units(2)

"Allocated arrived Arrived Arrived Planes Arrived -
from from arrived
Japan outside '
- Japan

Oct. 2C~31 100 800 100 700 - 100(3) 700 (4)
November 1000 800 750 50/60(5) 500/600 200/ 300
Decenber 800 600 600 200/ 300 300/ 400
Januarx) 1<0 100 100 B 40 60

(1) Except in October, this figure 'includes planes assigned to units
moving for the first time into the Philippinct as well as planes
allocated as neplacements fQr units already.in the Philippines.

(2) i.e. Planes assi;ned to units which had not previously operated
in the Philippines. | ’

(3) From Japan. .~ T - T

(=) Half from Mzlaya, Wetherlands Zast Indies. .
(5) New unito from malaya, dumatra.

folonel Matsumae made the following statements b, way_of‘explanation‘of the

a2bove tabless

o

e

Bes

ihen was the decision made to bring air reinforqements into the Philippines?
On 21 OUctober, by weneral TOMIﬂuGﬁ, Commanc ing General of the 4th »lr army.
de ordered in 800 planes. 34 . b g e

4

where diu thesc planes conme from?

They wWere brought in from Shaighai, Formosa, Malaya and sorned.
|




Interrogation #249 Cont'd

Lid these 800 planes tome all at once?. .. -

Two thirdis came at once, others drifted in later, having been delayed by en-
g&ine failure, weather, ete. ' B i T A 2

were these planes féplaceﬁlent:s for 'miita"already operating in the Philippines
or were they entirely ney units brought into the Philippines?

~About 700 of them were in units. JFor example 7 Flying Brigade (heavy bombers)

came from Sungei Patani, Malaya, vie labuap, Borneo, to Clark Field. They. .
left Malaya on 23 October with gbout 40 airerafs. ~

Did any reinforcemente come from Manchuria?l
Nanchurian units had come down in auzyst.

were any special arrangements made for the reinforcement of Japanese Army Air

upits in the Philippines?

At the end of October Lt. Col. Murata, them a Staff Officér in the Southern
army under Field Marshal Terauchi, went to Tokyo to see about getting planes
from Army Air Headquarters. ,He requeeted 1,200 to 1,500 fizhter planes a
month for the Philippines. Df course he knew ths profluction figures and it
would have been useless forfhim to requegt more. Myfunderstanding is that
this request waa based on ing 300 serviceable fighter planes available
daily and it was felt this could be accomplished by the allocation of 1,200
planes monthly. Losses of J00% a month were erxpeeted. 1In November, Tpkyo
allocated 1,000 of wiich 80D arrived, eo that perhsps 200 were lost en route.
Some of these were subsequahtly repaired and sent 3n down to ILuzon.

When was it decided t','o_ send ng more plane_ﬁ to the ;‘hi*lipptnes?
about 20 January 1945. tually none were eent

] h after about 9 January 1945
because taere were no sgfviceable air fields., | ; 4 '-

wohat was ‘the efiect of, the midf-Degémjbe.r gt#é_k_‘e‘hﬁli:_on _Glark Field?: -

oerviceability was 'not'_a.ctually réd.uced vé;y mach. The planes were themoughly
dispereed and there was little need for maintenance. On the other nani, of
gourse, dispersal vitally hindered operations .

When did this dispersal begint
Mogtl, -afte:;' t-hé B-24 ;trikea.
Did thé B-2ds deatfd;;r many aircra.ft on the ground?
Far more than the carrier strikes. ‘
= *gﬁ.acxs O LINGAYEN

What planes were involved in the attack on the U.S. Forces en route to Lingayen
the first weck of January, 19457

Both army aad NJavy planes were employed in about equal proportions. about 120
a3y planes from Olark Field were involved - all suicide. In view of the very
heavy Allied fighter cover afforded along the coast, between the convoy and the
Cagayan Valley airfields, our planes could not penetrate to the convoy and had
to go around—either to the north over Cape Balihao or to the south over Cor-
regidor—and attack the convoy from the west. Meanwhile, despite the allied
¢over, taere were very few attacks on the Clark Field area. These attacks
werc ecarried out over a period of several days and during that:time 120 planes
were committed and lost,

ARMY-NAVY I44ISON

WQat liaison was there between 4 air ATy and the Navy air commands in the
Pnilippinee? * ¥ | 4

" . - g = -'-. Ll

Yy & s
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Interrogation.#34S Gont'd

Q. What loseses did the JAAF incur as a result of the 9 September carrier strike?

r -

A, The firsi attack caused a loes of 200 army planes - mostly on the ground.

What losses did you sustaln from the secund carrier strike. agains? Luzon about
21 Septembert

g

A. Wwe lost less than 100 planes, about half in the air and half on the ground.

L g .y

Q. What revieions did you make in your estimate of Allied plaas sfter the 15 .
September landing on Palau and Morotai? |

A, We btill felt:.the Allies capable of landing at Davoa, Leyte or lamon Bay. The
ares north of Mindanao seemed more probable in view’of the. Palau landing. at
this time we felt .the landing could not take place until November since we &
thought at. least two mbnp‘hsf would be neeessary for Allied preparations.

G. Was the Army or, Nevy &ir 'Force‘ﬁe‘spo'nsib_l_e for the defense. of Mindanao?

A. There were only Navy planes at Mindanao, but the Army planes.were. to move down_
if nccessary. ' ve PELE 2 A M i o

& Did the Navy air Force agree with the army cotimate of allied Antentione?

I am not sure. The Navy was putting special emphasis on the defense of
@ Mindanao.

G #hen the cerrier force struck the Ryukyus and Yormosa in the period 10-16
October were any 4th Air Army planes committod? _ Nl

A, NHQ' except for 7 and 98 Flying Regiments which were under Navy command. When
the carrier furce was withdrawing portheast of the Philippines, a few 4th
. aAir arny planes were committed. b = A e,

4. What was the Japanese estimate of Allied plans after the 10 Qetouber carrier.
strike on the Hyukyus?l

L

‘ . . " v S P _ e --‘-*Lfé'.'.;
A. We felt that the purpouse of this strike wae to cut off the supply of plancs
cuming down to the Philippiucs from Japan and to isolate the Philippines., This
confirmed our fecling that the landing would take place north of Mindanao,

pussibly at Leyte, Lemon Bay, ‘aparri or on Formosa. -

Qs Did you regard the Byukyus-Formosa garrier strike of 10-16 Octuber as an im-
ncdiate prelude to invasita 6f the Philippince?« -

A, N, since we still felt that &’ landirg- would not:be made.untjl: November.

Q. What were your plans for the *ir defenss of Leyte?! -. . - *. .

A, We pl;a.nf:ed to oPE;fa’d'e ﬂeé:vy bumbers from the Manila~Clark Field area and fight—
ors and light bombers from the Visayas. We actually practised this defense
plan in late August and early Sg_.epte_mbe;_-'ﬂ44.

Qe W‘hat w-eru-it'o be the principal ‘bf_é.i'g:_eta of thre heavy b@ﬁbers?
A. Transports. | | e

G. Were attaciks to be by da,,f or '.by 'nié;h\t?”

A. At dewn and dmek, : 20000 ¢ o ¥ ;

Qe What bomber strength Wwa.s to b% available?

Byt o8 atfength of ¢ Flying Reg'im;eh:b'a 0;".t‘11e mth and 9th Flying Brigades. 1 reéa_ll
toree of the four Hegimentse: the 12th, 1l4th ond 62nd Flying Regiments. -

Qe were those 4 Flying Régiméﬁté:acthally i the Philippines at the time of the:
Leyte landings. b et - ol | | |

A, Ko, the September earrier strites had forced the withdrawal of cur 'bon{b'er's 0
Palawan, Malaya, and China. The 7th Fl,ing Brigade was 1n Malzya.




Interrogation #249 Contd

S i A R ea T pri o
G e b N

‘4. There was a complcte interchange of coples of plans. Moreover on cagh staff
there .was a meimber of the otaer sel'vice. .

w. vhen dida this intercnange begin?d |

- ‘ ‘ 5 @R e s =B ek .
A. &t least by Junc 1944, ‘The interchange was between the 4 air army anc the

lut air Fleet and later with Combined Base Air rorce. : R

_. . SULCIDE ATTACKS ‘

(. When was the first suicide attack by a Japanese ATV ynit in the Philippines

- Camgaign? . = 2 ' ol | ‘

4. 25 October, by a plane from the 24th Elying Regiment. .

il ' | T AR P e, b o o kSl

Q. When j}vas the first suicide attack by a Japanese AITY plane dn the entire war?

A. A suicide attack on’a torpedo was made by an army plane protecting a convoy- :
in May of 1944 1irn the Java sea. In J&ne of 1944, a suicide attack was made
in the andaman Islandse, with very suceossful results, and the idea that this -
was the best way to destroy ships quickly spread taroughout the Fapanese Xy
ard Navy Air Forces. Iafer in the esummer of 1944, a plane of the Sth Flying’
Regiment mace a suicide attack at Biak (Wew Guinea). ‘

S what Was the first unit specifical]ff organized as a suicide unit? il

A. The Fusaku Special aAttack unit. il | | ' s o .

. When was 1% organized?

A. In early October 1944, ;

Qe Where was 1t orgaanizedl. = & :

A. At the Hamamatsu air dechool at Hamamatsu in Japail. '

w. How was it f ormed? | o

A. Studeat pilots volunteered for the auty .,

v L
LS | - s L™
’

Q. waei Was it given its namel |

A. On arvival in the Philippilunes at the.gid of October by Ge..eral TOMInata, 'the‘
Commanding General of the 4dth Air arm;.
R e L Tk e e SBle g " G . ST T el

PLAS FOR DEFS.SE OF PHILIPPI/ES

g OX T aduals Ay
. what was your eetinatve of illied intentions as of May 19x47

A. We thought tne aAllles would do one of twd thingsi ; ~ - . -
(1) 1Invade Palau Islands ard from there invade the Phi}ippines at eifaer
Leyte or Lamon Bay:. | g A - B ‘ ‘ i -
, = _f_’_:_[; # ; ‘ TR CCHE
(2) 1Invade lorotai and from there invade the Philippines at Davao. _
Je thought that the Philippiae lindihgs would occur in September or early Ogtober, °
after the allied landing at Sausapor (30 July) we cunsidered the secund alterna~
tive the mure probable. g ML Y

-" o

Ge What was yjour plan for the defense of I-Eor'otai and Palau't

A. We had nou plaun for the defense of Palau, but Morotail was to oe deéfended by
army plaies staging through Davau,. attackin,. Morotai and landing at Hanado.
Likewise plaines from Kendarl and iakassar were to move tu Ambon, whence they *
were to attack iMorotai and land at Manadu. e started to put the plan 11t0
operativa, meving headquarters of <nd Flying Division from iegrus 1o vanado
and 7th Flying Division from Ambon to Manado. The da;, befure the first carrier
strile on the Philippines (3.e. 8 September) a naval lovkout in Davac harbor
issucd a falec report that the Americans were landin, in bavac Bay. There= .
wpui: Wwe abanduicd our plans and withdrew all vur planes frum Manado baclz to
e, Tude.

-+

-




Interrcgation 249 (Cont'd)

(Second Session) PHILIPPIVES CaMPAIGN

Q. At the start of the PHILIPPINE CAMPAIGH, what was thse gengrashcal
distribution of Army and Lavy planes? ~

A, The main fighter force nf the Fousth Air Army~was in the MANILA and
CLARK ARsA and TEGROS. The medium bombers were at KTDAT, FUERTO rRI.CESA,

LJIPA3Y heavy bombers at MaNTos, SHAFGHAI and TORMOSA* in general. .
3, Tid the Army have any strengih at MINDINAZY :
Boe FPw

Q. -las the lncation »f Army and havy Alr Units based én the differences
s fuceticn or on assignment to the defenne of different geographicai areast

A. The vavy and Army had bwilt their own air fields. The Lavy.air fields
at DaVa0, CiBU, 7 AMBOA. Ga, TACLOBAN and $TCHOLS PIELD. The Navy fields or
bases were considered the front line base 1in which they could carry out patrol
and searches for the enemy and the Army bases were considered secondary. If
necessary of coutrse, the Javy could fall bacx ta the armys fields.

Qe ucre the 200 planes lost in the first carrier strike, that you
| mentioned'yester&ay' were 'they Army planesti by & | .

A. all Army planes.
Q. here were those planes lost, what area?

A. DUEGROS, PANAY, TaNGAO TATJAY ~ND CAGAYAN.

Q. Jas this attack a suprise or had you expected it?
by W g B ; |

LT I i ] £

Ae Just_two_hcurs-waqning.
Q. Was that the firset time the Fourth aAlr army experienced an atteek
" by our carricr Task Forec?

a. - Yes, this is the first time.’

l

ana to effective counter measures?

]

(. DNid they have previous informaticn 2s to the tartics and instructloas

»

ar i
..

1. Some informeticn had been raceived froem the iavy of this tyne of
attack: =nd an attempt was mede to disperse the planes, but they cculd not
satisfactorily accomplish thls Bue to Laclk cf strength and air field facilities.

Gs Were ygou acquainted with the planes for the SF0-G0 Opeération?

" 4. That pl:n was for both the ‘Wavy and the arny, a joint ooeration. e
were acqguainted with the plens. v s’ : _

Q. In the plan for the SHO-GO Operati n, what miseion was assigned the
Fourth air army? B . g R g T el TR ' .

aes JThe army and. the bavy had seperate functions in this plen. - Tuoe
wavy wes to attack the Tagk Feéice and .the army to attack the transoorts; in
the second stage, after the U.S. Forccs had approached cleoecly, both the army
and savy were to sttack transports. ‘it wds the regponsibility ‘of the r1avy to
carry out cearches for the samerican Task Force.

‘e Did the Fcurth aAlr Army have knowledgd of the mevements of the Jap-
anese fleetl v G F - ' - |

A. OnlLy two days before the battle did they have this nevws.

Q. Tas there any attempt to coor&inate'thé Fourth Air aArmy plencs with
the Jepanese Fleet?

. ""6""‘
|
'-l
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Interrogation #249 (Coat'd)

A, There wes no attempt to coordinete with the Navy Surface Force.
A1 Army planes were attackin.g the transp"‘rts._: __

l:*.

‘_ -

"‘

Qe Roughly et that ime, whe.{ WrS the 'ba.;.a,ncu of ‘the strength of the
Army and navy in the BHI.L;IP:'I@}I‘§?

S Voe -,

A ‘Ro_ughly, they w'ere_ about tﬁe _.'safme"," ;
Q. What was the reason for the divieion of effort between the aArmy and
the Kavy planes; traditisa, plane design or Ppilot training? >

4« .

a. It was due to the type of planes and type of training.
Q,. In vvhat way .ﬂ@.'id'.the Army 'and.'Na‘v;y. training ‘_d.'iffer?

A, Due to the fact that the Kavy planes had a longer range, they were
trained in search. However, when there was a shcrtage of Favy planes, the

Army planes would assiet in searching.

Qe Were the pilots instructed to attack 0111,} transports or could they
attack battle 3hips, cruisers, etc., that were with the transports?

As 4aArmy pilots were instructed to attack tranﬂports first, but if there
were none present; they could attack other types. The rcason for this was
that the army's bombs were not suitablc for attacking a_rmored.shlps.

Q. 4t th.s time were they s}ill garrying ouy covennional attacks or
was it entirely KAMIKAZE attacke? :

A. Coaventional attacks a.t thls tima.
§. imen did tho Arny begin KadIKAZE attacks?

A. The beginning was by the ond of October. I+t was koown as’ the
FUGAKU FOICE.

e« During the progreess of the sca battle, o'h' the 20th, did ‘the Fourth
air army have information as to how those battles wers progrussmg. or did
the;y only hecar about it after it was all over?

Ae. No, I wa.s in NEGROS at the time and got partial reports from the
pilots and from the Liaison Officer of the Sccond air Fleet. Therc was
not detailed information gnd consqueirtly no assistance frem the nrmy plenes

wa.e requested.

Q. In November; thor. were attacks on our pos:l.tion in .EYTE by para-
chute troops, where did this attack come from and what strongth was thecel

- A.. They cenc from JAPAN. ‘o called them tho Sccond Parachute Brigade.
The:y came fo Clark end Lipe. Tho attack strength dropoed LEYTE wa's ncarly
300 troops.

Q. ‘hat did they expect that reid to acccomolish?

~ 4A. Tho main purpose was to occupy several air fields South of TACLOBAN,
in co ordlna.tion wﬂ.th s, JAPANESE ground attack. ‘ -

Qe D:.d.-they have any repo.rt on Qne. succegs of that operationi

EY

A. lLio direet information came from them, but the Army plancs confirmed
that tvo air fields were occupied by themselves for two orT threce days. The
second »urpose was to cause a diversion under cover of which reinforcements

might aporoach and land at ORMOC.

o In November and early December, several convoys were brought in
ORMOC, what was the name of that operation?

A, No particular name.
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Interrogation #2349 (Cont'd)

A .j» Who planned the operaticn? n..

%ﬁ Ao General.YnMnSHTA'

%; Qe tas thé oneraticn cmntrolled;by the7ﬂrmx? |
E, Ae as fer asg the aif defense:df.cdnvoyé wae concerndad., the army and

E Navy operated jolntly.

LB

G. ias anyone in control of the joint operations?

o A. There was no cne porson agsigned to either wavy or armyt 1t was
- carried out by coooeration and constant liaisoni

e Did you feel thest the air protedtion, given to thes: convoys, w2s |
sufficient? |

A. Extremely unsatisfectory and the loss was very high. The sceréity
of plancs w=s most sericus at that time end if I remember correctly; only
four or five vessels out of somec 50 arrived safcly at OIMOC and unloaded.

\

'b'

at what time did they abandon the idea of defending LEYTE? i
a. I'm not surc; the decision was given at about the seme time your
trooos landed at S8 JOSH..

ws Hed you cxpocted us to make our next landing av Sall JOSE?

[ _BLA )

A+  They expected at NEGROS or sanvaY; or at the samo time, or later at
LEGAaSEI. Thore was some thought of an attack on NUATH BORu#EO snd »n ProaWaN,
Lend. to land movements were expected after the LEITE landing i1 all directions.
A jumy as leong as: that to MIXDORO was not expocted

vo Jhen our ccavoy wes sighted heading for SalN JOSE, what was your
cstimate of our intent? X .

n; *he Convoy was sighted at the SULU SEa, but 1ts objective was not
kiovn until the landing. : -

L]

oy ﬁhat forces did you send against thig coa¥véy, with what results? ©

Le .bout. 250 army end Wavy Planes we;césent against this convoy.

(1« hat results did they got from that attack?

4

i. The rosult of this attrck was not very clear. all pianes attacked,

but no information was received beck. Most of our planes did not return.

The only roports were by wireless from the planes saying, "HO {E ARE GCILG

TC CR.SH." I imagine that over 30 american vesscls wore sunk. There wvas a
berrior of americaa fighter planes stationed over BaTAGAS STRAITS vhich made
1% very difficult to pass excopt, of coursc, at dawn or av dusk. aAnmecrican
plancs 4n small groups wers over the air ficld on LUZON, We weroe able to
Jtake off at such times as the; went away, but there was ‘enother difficulty
“in2 that the Filipiros hed some method of sighaling the american fighter planes
whor we were preparing to take Off which made it very difficult.

w. abecut the first of January, what was your estimate of cur intentiongf

ae  pandings were expected simultaneously at APARRI, LI.G.YE:.:, BaTadGaS,

ve ~ What ﬁ%ticqlar operational difficulties did ycu havo by the cad of
the year? ' ~ s
ae. Uo cculd not have an& time to repair the planes beceuse in the day
time, anmcrican planes werc above them and the time for repeirs was lixited
to tho night tires we had no good mechanics beceuse mest of thon were atb
.- +EGROS ard we hed been unable to cvacuate them; also tho lack of spar. parts.

[
q -

" ol
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Interrogation %249 (Conttad)

Q. When our coanvoy, 1in early January, & oproa.ched uIl\G-AYEN GU'LF how many
planes did you send against that convoj Ie:

A. .About 100 to 150 me:vy plmms wh:,ch was & little morc than Army planes.

Q. Yhat targets were ass*igned. to ‘bho pilots at this’ time?

- _ t'; :
. "-\

a. Thoy were ordered to attack the 1ead1ng convoy'vlth coopcration of
Novy plones. ol |

!

Q. Wers ths attacks .on tho bombardm rlt ancl ming’ #wa epér groups inside
of tho gulf mede principally bJ Army pla.nus?

A, Tirst day . 1t was mostly Nevy pla.aos, thls reason was bocause ‘tho Navy
nlanes could roach the convoy. The aArmy plancs made a mistake and attacked a
trangport convoy. after tho socond day, they att- cked all too'ethor. _

Q " Did thoy have any assistance from plancs hased at _FORMOSA

A. No aqsist&ncﬁ at a.ll from: FO':LJIOSA

Q. .I weuld 4.114:@ to chock thv.... figures you gave yesterday, you sa.ld Fourth
Air army had 300 aircraft in the Philippines in carly Yetober and received

total of approximately 2300 roinforcements during the campaigng Ia this
correct? . |

o

- A. 1 th11k thats about rlght ‘not more than 2300 reiaforcomonts, per—
haps 8 llttlo loss.

. How many planes did you .ovacuate. f.rom__ the PHILIPPIIES?
A. Doss than 30.

Q. That comecs out roughly at 2500 Army. plana.s lost 1in thb PHILIPPINES
CAMPAIGY, do ,,;ou think it is a rrascnable accurate. guoss? '

A. Thet is sbout right.’

Q. What wes.the most 1nporta.ut cause of thése losgscs cavering the
wholc ca.mpa 1ﬂ'n? ' |

A. In thc firqt stage; the most important canse was the air reids and
the ba2d condition of air fielde, so the loss in the first stage wes about

2/3._ The flrst stage is considered from October to the middle of Novomber
-and. the lattpr atﬂg1 tho 2/3 cenc dovn to 1/2, . . :

| Qe W’hﬂb other cause was theru. in latter stagv that was. 1ﬂportant?

A Flght in tha air and crashes. -
Q. What tppe of air ra:.d did they foar most?

Ae ot tho 'bcgirmlng th*- sprlous ‘demage was done by carricr air reids;
toward the end the more serlous oa,nagﬁ was from B-24 Qarpet bombers.

Q. In‘'geoneral, do. you belleve t‘lat tho U Se planes wore better or Just
that there were nore of them? - yi g

Sie Yas_, bctter. "

(&, ﬂhich do jou thiﬁk was the best!l

' A. ILa bonbers, of coursc, the B~29 outstanding; as for fighter planes,
the F6F was the best although poss:.‘bly that is the training. Navy fighter
pilots were 'mch better tramed thn.a the arny flrhter pllotep

K. anong thu .zs.rm,, fl@ltor ple.ws. ‘which ty_pe chd. he think was the best?

ne P=bl and F-38. Ve took the P-38 rorc seriously since NEW GUINEA.
Wherc we hed sc much difficulty with P-38.

-0
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Interrogation #249 (Cont'd)
Q- When, in your cpinion,:did. tho wor swing ageinst the JAPANESE?

A. 1 thiank that from the bogianing of 1948 Anerican attecks startod
Th: sourcc of this 1uformht10n is fron tno N=val Officers with whon I had

freque::.t alscusalo X ;e . e

F b L ] - " '
L] - ‘ F ' - ‘-

. Qe AS the war went on, Wth“l asd. the,,f consider thg s0et Eorious throat?
The move: from Solonons and Nev. Gunlea or the Central Pocific car*pfugn? |

4. Personally I thcught ’chet the* movemc,nt from the South which thrca.t--_
ciied "to cut off our supplics and rosource-s was the roat. sl.,rioue threat.

Qe Before our landing on LEYTE dld 301.1 at th'.a.’o tlmo bblll?(‘ that you
cou.l,L succossfully defe*‘ld the PHILIPPIWS? *

A. We thought that it was. a 50 . 50 prOporltloﬁ @xccpt the t Drohﬁle
you could suecceed in some landings, but we could also continue to fight in
various points. At the time of your attack on LEYTE, we were astonished thnt

Jou camne go 800l as our prepration wes not CO"lplCtC‘d. and go the conditicn
becane woree than 50 — 50. £ % . .

== B When was 4t dééi.d.ed to reinforce the PHILIPPINES from Fb‘d\TGHURL;.?

A¢ at the beginning of Moy, On 26 .npril 1944 thc Slx{;h Flying Division
sufiered vaery heavy losses at HOLLANDLL and for this reason it wes docided |
that the Phllippmes Tf‘ust be remforced. from M4iNCHURIA,




Interrogstion #249 (contd) o ook 5okl

TRAINING PROGRAM ..

: TRAINING PROGRAM
(Third Session)

'Q. Before we dome t6-.the trainingy I.would like to0 ask you (Col Matsumae)
5 couple of questiona bn what you said the other day about the Philippines .
Campaign. Iou said the last Hime I talked to you that en the 9th of January
the Japanese -Army Air Ferces ‘had 120 aircraft 1o the Philippines. I wonder if
you meant 120 oen 9 J anuary oOr. 120 en.the first of Jomuary, You aleo said that
between the 6th of January and the 9th of Jenuary, 120 planes approximately
attacked the task force aporoaching Leyte and that many of them were lost

bvefore the 9th, so that, therefore., itls ha,rd-to see ‘how.,there. were 120 on
the Oth. I wonder if you could eclear that upt

A. On the 4th and 5th of J anuary, planes attacked the Mindero airfield,
and on the 6th started the attack on shipping in Lingayen Gulf. At that time
we had 120 planee including the replacements that came in, ¥For the month of
Jenuary, 1 would estimate the losses. at 170 plenes. That figure.of 120 planes
wag for the firset of Japmary. * e 4 o .

Q. Another question nee erisen in talking ebouf your last week!s an-
swers to our questions in respect Yo what were the Japenese plans on the
30th of May and what were the Jaopsnese estimates of Allied intentions on the
20th of May. I wonder if you could repest approximately what you said last
week about 4llied intentions in respect to the Philippines on the 30th of May?

A. On the 30th of May the U. S. forces had ~just landed at Biak; there-
fore we thought that either they would strike North toward Palau, then over {0
Somar or Leyte, or proceed from Biak up to Halmahara, Morotai, or to Manado
and thence up to Daveo, However, the prevailing opinion wes that they would
take the latter route.

Q,. Thank you., Now what woe the Jepanese estimate of Allied intentions
sfter the carrier strikes on the Ryulkyus which took plece on 1O October?

A. On October 10, Palau hed already been invaded; in aciition, Morotai
had been occupied, but the fact that American forces had gone 1O Palau made
us feel that the attack on the Philippines would take place somewhere in the
Centrel Philippine area, However, after the Taiwan (Formosa) sea battle,
vecouse of the American losses in aireraft carriers that we had heard about,
we felt thet the invesion of the Philippines was nob imminent.

Q. Did you actually believe the report thet the Japanese Imperial
Headouerteres had put out about the so-celled Ses Bettle of Formosa, snd vase
your estimate of the sea battle on thatl

A. In o sense we did. While we did not toke the regular communique as
being the truth, our reporis indicated that losses hac been fairly heevy.
However, after the battle of Formosa, the Americen forces retired towar s
the Philippines, end beceuse of the intensity of their air cttacks, we did
foel that their losses had not been too great. |

2. What was your next duwty efter you left the 4th Air Army = your next
aseignment?

i. Officer in Charge of Training at Air Headguarters.
Q. Pilot trainingt
A, Yes,

Q. And you had supervision then over e11 the Japanese Army Pilov Train-
ing Schools, both in Japan and outeide of the country? Is thet right?

A. I had no actual jurisdiction over troining ot the verious eirfields.
My duty wes to supervise the training program, After seeing action 1in the Fhil-
ippines Campaign, 1 wes aslled Back to Tokyo to Air Headquarters in order %O
prepere training programse vhereby we would benefit from the lessons learned
in the Philippines Campalgn.

P g




Interrogstion #249 (contd)

Q. 4bout what day .4id you take mp: these duties -~ whot, time? . ;
: . i s . R : 5 . ‘.__‘ ,.: it 2 \ o

A. Tebrusry 20, 1945,
FQH.-And.hQW'long;digayputhold_tha$_position3

A, Untill the end of March, 1 shall now explain something sbout the
chain of command in this training programs My bureau had direct control over
the activities of the vearious qudp'H@kmghidan; in addition, it controlied
the sctivities of the various technicel air depots (Kenkyujo). In addition
we supervised the training program for the various Kolushiden under the Kolu-

gun.

GC. So that in substance you controlled the flight training program
vhich wes maintained in the Kyodo Hikoshiden 2nd you supervised the flight
training progrem which wse maintained in the Xyoilu Hikotei.and the Reneel
Hilkotai end the Renshu Hikotail? |

>

A, That is correct.

Q. Did you cease to have any connection with the treining program efter
the end of Morch 194507 |

A. After the end of Moarch an orgenization was sov up which was known
as Koku Sogun and I took over the szme duties as formerly in thise new orgeli-
izational set-up. - = | | -

Q. How long did you continue to be econnected with the trzining bureau
of Xoku Sogunt ‘ '

A. Until the 24th of August, 1045,

Q. So that from the 20th of February, 1945 until the end of the welr
you hod control of the flight training program of the Kyodo Hilroshiden and
cenerel supervision over the flight -training progrem of the Kyoilzu Hikotai,
the Reushu Hikotai, and the Rensei Hikotall

s

A, Thet is correct.

Q. This included training unite in the southern sreal

A, No

G. It included only Eraining units subordinete to the Koku Sogun?
n; IThat is correct;;

Q. In other words, treining units in Jzpen proper, Mrnchuris, Xoree,
ond. Chinat . & . ; ' o0 LT T e i

A, That 1s correct.

G. JYou never had.juriédiction over the treining units in Formosaf

5ne NO,

Q. Were there any training unite in;Fo:mosauduring toie periods
A, Prior to the formation of the KokﬁFSogqn,.ﬁhere were unite in FOrmos:

but subseguent to thet they were dissolved, These unite were under the control
of the Formosca sir Heedquerters. | '

Q. Were they under the controlfof £t Eiloshiden?

A, 1{es,

-,

&. How many aircraft wers assigﬁed to tre treiring units under Kolm Sogun
ot the time of the ergaizotion of the Kolu Sogunt ¢

13
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Interrogation #249 (eontd.)

A, &actuelly, the number designated for treming purposee was 2bout 2000
planes, Wut those that were actually operational were about 2 thousand or -
lese,

} -_ y: o

Q. Of the 2000 planes a.ee1gned to the Koku Sogu.n traming orge,mzetion.
how me.ny were combat type ple,neSP Gt ‘ +

'1‘
"'h~

A, I woulo. say apprexima’cely 8’ thcmfse:aa plenef-e ‘but this included many
many, old typee end thoee ‘that Were ac’auelly cap.:.ble of fighting were extrem-
ely few, 2 g ~

Q. Whet was the principel elementary treiner?

A, The KI-86 (Jungmann tr‘e,iner) e.nd: the type 95 Merk I treiner,
. Q. The KI-9‘|" |
A, I don't remember.

“Q.*' How many: elementery traivers?
A. Approximstely 800 ple.nee' in ";oth types.
Qe Thoee- 800 included in the 2060?'-_" |

A. Yee; a thousand planes were combat types and about 800 elementary

Q. How many KI-79%

A, &Around 100.

Q. Hox;r'many KI-54?. h R P o

A, about a hundred and fifty or ei:ety piﬁa-nes; g belie_ve.

Q. Do you have any records of those figures or are you reconstructing:
them from memory?

A, What I am now telling you ie from memory.

Qs Did you have any idea of the number of training planes not under the
jurisdiction of the Koku Sogun ‘in the southern:areal

A. The queta wes 528. We were unable to send replacemente from the
Zmpire, hence as a rougn sstimate I would. eey there were not more than 30C
planes, . ¢ . .

Qe These are just training plenes, or do they include combat typee as-
gigned to training unite? |

A. Up to and including the type. 97 fighter only,

(Col Matsumae stated that he would consult with Col Mateuzewe and .if poesible
would obtain more accurate figuree on the aircraft treining units.)

Q. How many aircraft were assigned - talfen'k from training units under
your., jurisdiction or under the jurisdiction of Kou Soguh and assigned to
special attack unite between the time: of the orgenieation of Koku Sogun e.nd.
the end of the wext .

A, Out of these 2000 plenes, I would say spproximately 500 planes were
sent from the training units of Koku Sogun to special sttack units,

Q. ©So theaet at the end of the war there remained eomething in the niegh~
borhood of 1500 alrcraft assigned to Koku Sogun?

"o

A. That 1s ecorrect.

2




Interrogation # 249 (contd)
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Qe How em;y plenes did you receive? These 2000 plénes were ones you hed
when you took over; how many additionel combat planes were essigned to Koku
Sogun between. the time you took over the organigzation and 4the ¢ndé. of the war
by the wey of replacement? - g ' -

A, We do notv have the exact £ 1gur'és on thet "t;:g‘.c_rnse. t_h?{-vtl_ ‘is"in;C-ol‘ g
Lietsuzowva'le possession, but we will inquire of him and get you the figuresy’

While I do not remember the figures, Wy assumption-ig‘that there were very
few replecements. s 3 S S | | | -

C;'. In other words, ordinary wastage whica took'p]:ace in the training .
unite was just about replaced by new aireraft or aireraft from depote?

4. I believe that teking the entire orgaization of the Koku Socun thet
we i have 1500 planes, but 1t maiet be realized thov maybe only 500 of these
were sctually in operation. T .

0. How meny plenes aeeiened to the training units of the Koku Sogun
ware destroyel. by Allied air ettack between the time of jts orgeization and
the end of the wart | |

a. I believe it to be under 50 plenes,

¢, How meny operationel and other }osseé - sceidents, ctcl -

4. I am eble only to malte a rough estimete of this becruse our figures
on operstional losses include those in the soutlhern regions end all operation-

a1l lossecs in combat unite also, but 1 would estimate eur training plane losees
to be aporoximetely 50 planes a month of which a portion were repairatle.

Q. In whet stage of training ~nd with whet types of sircraft did you
suffer. the most difficulties? - 2 i

A. I would say thet the type o7 fighter losses were the grepbeny.

C. You said that fewer than 50 planes were destroyed by Allizd eir attaclks.
1se thet over the whole period or jusdb for a monthl

A. The whole period.

Q. At the beginning of the ivrr_; how meny flying hours did a pilot have
when Le left a treining unit and wes apesiened tora tectical unit?

A. Three hundred Zé:.ours.

Q. That is when he enters & tocticel unit after having left a training
unit? : -

4. At the beginning of the war fighter pilotse would be sent to -t:?'.c_‘oica.l
vnits with obout 200 hours of flight time &nd then would have approximately
100 extre hours before sent out on combat. | |

Q. So thet the minimun level of"ex'pei'i‘ence of a Jepenese fighter pilot

in, let us say, the 5th Hikoshiden at the time of the early 'Philippines Cem-
peign in 1943, wes sbout 200 hours?

A, Thet is correct.

Q. If the minimum wes Z00 hours whet would De orout the aversge flying

L 4

A, A elmutaicho would have about 80C hours and & senteicho chout 3000 hours.
Q. How about the ordinery figl}tg;ﬁ pilott: S
A. We figured thet wes about 600 hours.

e Wwhat was the situation in respect 1o bomber' pilots? Was it about the
some as the fighter pilote? What wes the difference, if any? |

C~=lde




- Interrogation #249 (con‘o&) o=

. A, It was sbout the same, I believe, but because of -dual controls on a
¢ bomber it was hard to estimetec what their actual flight time would be.

Q.  Are yoxi_ e f‘igjhterfpi'lio‘t or 'a."-bollﬁ‘bevr pilot (asiced O:E'Col'. Métsumée)?
A, A bomber pilot: Maj;‘or Mém‘ta is & i.'ig‘hter.pilot. .
Qs _HO\:T aﬁout reconnaidance pilote?
A about the same, '
C. Now at the time you entered the Koku Sogun, in charge of t::"aining,
vhat were the average.figures-i:?r minimum-fligh.t timg by fighter pilots,

accigned to tactical unite?

A. When they grad.im..‘l;ed. from this school the sentaicho had about 1400
hours, the chutaicho had sbout 400 hours, while & fighter pilot .had about &
hundred hours, g g . oo

Q. Do 1 understand tha"clat- the time a fighter pllot-was assigned to a

tactienl unit from a tralning unit in March 1945 he hed had only 100_ hours
flying time? . P o

i, That is correct, , R b 5 e 4

G. &nd before he ontered combat did he have any more flying time?,

4. Perhape 20 or 30 hours but thet would be all. I might add that .
because of this fact we picked only those pilotes whom we belived to have
possibilities and gave them further training in interceptiion tactice whereas '

the ones thet did not seem to be particularly good we shifted around to spe-
cisl attack units,

6. Wny wes it that the time given pilots in the training program before
they were ascigned to tactical units dropped during the wert?

. A. Three factors entored into this: First was the fuel problem; second-
1y, the laclk of plencs; end third, the necessity of producing pilots rapidly.

Q. When did the fuel problem first become acute?

4, Ochtober 1944,

Q. When did tne shortagze of airplanes bYecome acutel

A. sbout the seme time: in other words, after the Philirpines Cempaign
sterted.

0., And when was it decided thet pilots h-d to be trained with great
rapidity?

A, The neced wes folt first sbout October 1043,

Q. So that between the beginning of the war and October 12438 the gen-
ernl level of pilot experienco remained about the same?

A, 4approximatcly the seme level,

Q. The caliber of pilots remained at approximately the same level until
the time Roboul wes hemmed in which would be about sutumn of 1943, and at that
tims you suffered heavy losses of trained pilotst ' |

a. . That is correct.

Q. Was there ony change in the training progrem et that timef

A. Taere was no sudden drop but little by little we cut down the flying
hours, RV Sl e SRl

Q. Now, what wes the general level of pilot experience at ‘the time of
the becinning of the secod Philippines Campaign about the first of September
19447 EHow meny flying hours were given a pllot when he left the training

Sl B




‘Interrogetion #249 (contd)

unit end entered the tacticel uni’osf

A. I would say that the avers e";"‘i'f‘lm"bf'_*ofi'fjiée: pilote had about 170
noure and petty-officér pilots about 130 hoéurs, which would give us averags.
about 150, | S P A et o ot Lt g

]
-

A% - T .

Q. And they rébe_iir_ed tra_iﬁihg 1n t.a_dﬁi'cfal unitéd before they were ac-

i Nd, this figﬁra t'ﬁat I havq gi‘;renf you 1__6-'the_ one t};at they have lmme-
diately prior to going into eombat. FE O T o

Q. Pilots then were gont into combat directly after having left train-
ing units in the Philippines? ¥ it i :
A. That is o0.

Q.' Refore this time, were pilots ever sent 1into combat directly from
training unite?

| A. .Never before the Philippinee Gampaign.

Q. Before the Phillppines Campaien - immedlately before - how much ;
additional training would a fighter pilot have before he entered combat after
he left a training unit? * - ' A

A. Yes, they received flight training.

Q. How much before going into combet?
A, - About 50 hours. S TR U i ww Vg

Q. When you went back first to Kokii:Nombu end then to Koku.Sogun after
the dissolution of the 4th Alr Army, whet chenges did you inaugurate in the
treining programt e A A ' : ’ o B

i %

A. We stressed a.ytadks“"bn shipping.

¢.. Before this time what partic;ﬁlé,r tectlc had been stressed by the -
training commend? *- | - : "t : .

A, After the experiences of the Philippines Cempeicn, I streesed the
fact that all planes, including fighter, borbers, ete, should be used for at~
tacking shipping rather thdn fly their” particular roles in the echeme of -
thinge. In other words, we pianned to make all types of planes into special
attack planes. gt . *

Q. In effect, then, you stopped training fighter pilote O irtercept
Allied bombers and fighters and turned your training progrem' into e progranm
for training pilots to atteck ships?

-,
]

A, As I mentioned before, this does not necessarily mean that we did

not train fichter pilots but that we spent the firet portion of the training

progrenm in training them to ottack shippling and went into attack, interception
etc, in the later stages of the training progrem, ' e 3

Q. 3But in fact, you were interested in budlding e counter-shipping air
force rather then a counter-air-force air force?

A. That 1ie correct.

- Q. Outline the course of the flight treining prescribed for the average
fighter pilot at the ‘time of the 'end of the Philippined Cempaign and at the
time you took over supervieion and controll ¢ -

A, Before I left the 4th Air Army and took over supervision of the train-
ing progren, 20% of & bomber pilot's tralning time wes devoted to landing and
take-offe, 28% to acrobatics, and formstion €lying, 12% to natigation and
cross-country flights, and 40% to regular dombins practice. ifter 1 took
over superviesion of the training progreain, only 15% of a bomber pilot's train-

), G-




Interrosotion #249 (contd)

inz tine wrs token up with lendins end tﬂlce—gifs,..’EO%.tgas devoted to acro-
brtics ané fornation flyingz, only 8% to cross-¢ountry, ond navigation train-
inz, and 57% to the practice of attacks on shipping, principally by "Hell-
Divins®, Prepereation for borbing ‘attacks, or the orthodox level bombing at-
tack, ceme ot the very end of -the course ‘end occupied only a very short part
of the time. One reason for.the emphasis on dive~bombing was the inadequacy
of the Japenese bomb-sizht which did not.allow any precision in level bomb-
in:, another reason wes that dive-borbing ﬁ'a;_ctics]lend' 'th_ems_elveé to speciel
attacks or suidide attacks, a2nd sbout that 'ti_l.me the Comanding General of
the Koka Sosun announced that all pilots, without exception, rmet consider
thenselves nenbers of Kamikaze units., =~~~ = .. B 4 4 g e

Q. What changes did you nake in the tralning pfogram for fishter piloisT
.;;.. Yhen I took over the training progran, 25% of & flghter p.ilo't's
tine was devoted to landing and take-offs; 55% to interception practice; 8%
to navigation &nd cross country. flying) and 12.% to bombinz and strafing.

Q: Did the bonbing and gtitafing fre..iniﬁe: 'whicﬁ took place before you
took over supervision of the training progran indlude dive-bbribing practicel

cbo YeB' it d.idp

Q. When did.you -first' introduce any t;‘_a:iﬁing é.t all on dive~bonping ;
with fighter plenest ' ' , ' gr | ¢ W3

ia. dust before the Philippine depa,ign,_; about -June 1944,

. Will you continue your statement :otj how you chanced the trainine
prosgrem when you took over in February 19451

4. ‘hen I took over the traing progrem I directed thet 25% of a fighter
pilot!s time should be devoted to the practice of landings. and take-offs;
22% to interception, 8% to navigation ax}d'crqpsl-country‘flying. and 35% to
the practice of bombing and strafing, with prtfcular emphasis upon dive-bomb~-
inz. The reason for this increase in the percent of flizht time devoted to
dive-bombing was the same as has been stated in respect to-a sinilar. increase
in the dive-bombing time of a bomber pilot, Because of the shortage of bomb~-
ers it wes necessary for fi-hters to attack shipping as well. - i

Qe Now.ﬂ I believe you stated that at the time you came 1o Xoku Soegun,
the averace time given a fighter pillot in traininz schools ‘before joining-a
tacticel unit was approxinately 100 hours. Is that correctt. ¥ ¥ ’

iy »

A. Yes, that is cor_rec‘t.

Q. Was it necessary to shorten that time during the period between the
end of February 1945 end the end of the warl " % b v e g

A, Yes, there was such & neceéeitﬁr; :
Q. How much was it shortened?. _
a, after Jﬁly‘1945 they tegen & study as to whether.they could shorten

this hundred hours down to 80 houre which reans a 20% decrease, They studled
but didn't carry out their plan., ° ¥ -

Q& ‘In other words."-bhé'y‘ne‘i}er did. 142 | p . : *
A, No, they never did 1it,

Q. Why wes it necessary to further reduce: the nimber- of -hours ziven’ in
training units? - oL - J _ :

By Gaéolina problenm.

Q.. That oﬁtweighe'd-all the othéij ré&edﬁéi : Th.at w;ns the most .important’
factor? : P NE g B T S

; - e
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Interrogatia}n # 249 (Cont'd

&

. - L]

A, Ounly ':gaaoline. de it Al ; 4R S ;,

Q. DPid yovu ever use'a}cushal as an aviation fuel in training duriii;g‘ this i)er'iod'f .

A. They ueed ple':ilty.; ' e Su ¥ o b o
G When did you begin using alcohel for aviatiun fuel in t:airdné? l

A. Sinece after April 1945--beginning in April 1945.

% Was alcunul ever used in cumbat aircraft?

A. They had such a plan tu use alcohul in combalb aircraft beginning augusi cf
thiis ,ear but they never carried it out. s W 2 .

Q. In what types of sircraft was alcuhol used as a fuell

A. Alcchol wae used in training in all typés of trainer aircraft and in the Ki-27
and KI-36. It was not uscd in any olier types of coumbat aircraft althiwngh
there was a plan for such use. ’ -

(Intex"viaew at 1215 was adjoﬁrne,d. to 1330 hu;ur.s'. Add-itiunéll;' preseut aft..:,;:" T~
suming at 1330 hours: Fur the U.S.A_., Me jor JOHN SHIVELSI USMC , Ir"_tc:rprc:-ter..-).

&. There are a couple of thingse 1'd like tu ask you about whatv you sald this
morning just to clear the record—~things that bothered me a little as 1 was
thinking about themi You said that taere were three facturs which limited the
Japanese training progranm, one of whieh was fuel, one was & shurtage of trained
piluts, and the third was a ghortaze of birplaics. Now when yowu saic taad
there wae a shortage of alrplancs which limited the training prosranm, did ‘yuu
mean curbat airplance ¢r training airplanes? B -

A. The pruductiun of airplanes in this (prggz'am) was to cuver the luss of vpera~
tivnal wnits——not to supply the loss 1n training uniteé dbut“only to cever tie
luss in the theatre oI war. o f | | -

G In uther woras, producticn of cumbat sircraft was sufficient tu euver cunibat.

lossce aud nut sufficicnt to replace training losses?

Mhat is right.

. Bu tuat the shortage was iu cumbat plasee and not 1n training vaest |
L. There was a siaurtage of combat aircraft.
%e In other worde therc was a shortage of combat aireraft for training purpuses?

A. Beeause of the necessity of turning LVver as many planes 0 oﬁeratiuns as’
possible, 1t was in the operatiunal aircrail that we found a sacriags four
trainin-. * | ¥ otk |

Q. Now anutiier guestion thab I.hed in nind which arcse from what you said this
mornings You eeid that a%. the end of the war you had abuut 1500 planes as-
sisned tu the training ynits of the Kol Somun of whieh ‘only 500 were cpera-~
tional. I wonder what was the reason for that low rate of serviceability?

A. They nad 2000 and of thuse 500 were sent to spccial attack units. The 1500
were the remainder, and the gundition of thuse planes were nob su wova Bu thcre
were only 500 adreralt gscrviceable.

Q. In otier words ths bestpq',e.;j:ea were eent tu the Special Atdack Units?

A. Of the 2000 planes they had,. they tovk the 500 best plarnes and turned tuem
over tu cperational units. That left the 1500 worst planes, and of tuavse
only 500 were useable, That 1s just 25%, but had they: figured the whole thilg
there wiuld nave been 1000 planes cut of the 2000 or only 50%.

Q. HNow, 1'd like tu gu back tu a different surt of su"bj'ec'ﬁ and talk about tae
number of pilcets you lad during the war and whether they were of a limiting

~18-




Interrvgation #2493 Cont'd

factor in your uperatiovne. Do you have any ldea how many piluts Japauese
Arny Air Force had on:the 7th ol Deceriber 1941—-the bezianing of the warl

A, I dun't remember.

Q. Dv yvu remember wheticF there were envugh pilote to man all the planes that
the Japainese army Alr Force had atb that timel

; A. Just envugh for the planes.

G .Yuu had nv nure pilot‘a. than you had. planesf

""" A, Nu surplus. Al

Q. About the same mumber of pilots as planes?

A,.. Abwut the same.

Q. Tw don't remember how many p;lé.neé ;rou haci?

A, Approuxinmately 1.500 aircraft. *

Q. .E\.ixd. yuu 8ay you had ,jua‘t ab}a;tl fh‘enJ 1500 pilcte—~—or 1500 alr crews pro’bab;y?
A, 1 wulé say: the piiuta in thé ﬁheat‘re of the war approxi'mately 2000 aad the

pilete in varivus training schools and groups, 1000, su'altuzether appruxi-
mately 3000. E Tk | |

R.- 2000 piloté in combat units and approximately 1000 pilots in training?
A, 1000 piluts in training means instructors and pilots in training schuuls.
e How many trailecs were there-—how many student pilots?

a, The whule cdurse lasted une years six munthe for pripary couree and anovther
six nonths fur advanced course. New trainees entered the group or unit twice

in & year. There wuuld be about 1500 in a class, or about 3000 graduates in a
year.

G. In vther words the training progran put cut 3000 pilote in 1942 scv that on 1
Jamuary 1942 yvu had about <000 pilote in tactical units ready tuv fly, about
1000 instructurs, etc., in the training organization, and about 3000 trainces
of whom 1500 were in advanced training units and would graduate as fully
trained pilute a4t the end of the first six months of the year and the remain-

©ing 1500 would graduste at the end of the year?

A, Yes, that's currect. f & 5
Q. That is the way it wae ¢n 1 January 19421

{4t this puint Cul MATSUMAE consulted with Maj MARUTA and constructed a table,.
showingz the number of graduates fronm the advanced flying schuuls on the fullowing

dates? ).
- | Nunmber of
Date Pilct Graduates

31 March 1941 | 1009 b o
30 Sept 1941 - - - o IEO0 T T,
31 March 1942 1500
-30 Sept 1942 - 1500
‘31 March 1943 - 1500
30 Sept 1943 1800
31 March 1944 | .+ 4500 vy
51 July 884 -« - el GO0t T TS
30 Nov 1944 .t & ADop® U
31 March 1945 - ' - 3890 3
31 July 19«5 F R o B

*Notes Out of a clase of 6500 culy 4000 graduated because of the 'éaéuline pro—
blen and shurtace of training planes.
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_; Interrogation #249 Cunt'ad Vs

&e How many plluta wae. it. plzmneﬁ  ToN tram in the dlase which would dormsally have
L tra&uhtcd on~ 80 Nuvumbc# 19&37 T a9 ¢ Sy T Srey _ ol d
g o) A g ‘f-iﬁq ol e s B o o a B v DT . T

i G. A we 'unaenstaﬁd these fifuresi:they represent the rumber of pilits which

: actually sraduated in training units. Unduubtedly mere pilut& entered the

trainin,: units. What was the percentage of pilouts who  éiitered - the trainin,
'unlts and whw, fur sume reasun ur uthnr Wers never quallfled?

5 - - -

A. Those Whu entered the traininq BChuul weTe 1500 8¢ 10% uut i 1500'wcrc vt
auitable to bBCumb pllots.

] " - -
e . 3 : SRS o
vy, e - o i ] " : ¥ Lad 2

G. In other words the flgures whic¢h yuvu have just siven us arc nut fisures of
pilct. graduates from tr&inlnFWSChudl but cf plluta pntmrlng the traiding

sch_uli _ e b4 # 0 b 3 | _ f-_qff{ ;
A, Thc braauate& ar; 1350 1aat¢ad bf 1500.‘ ;b . | - : 3} l "
G. Ia 1941 thew. .n 31 March,_QOﬁ‘;f 1000-in‘utner erdB Q00----pila..ts ,rm&u todl
A. That 1s rig ht . | i“: .3. ; 583 | | | ;" ) i"" , :
%. Now dic the percentase Lf pilutb‘Whu were nct quallllud vqry frum the befin-
nine tuv the eaud of the war? g : g : ¢

A. There was no chuamp el but in gemeral the ability cr suitability tou be a pilut 4
fur these, 3000 at the end of the war was lower than at the bmtlﬂﬁiﬂ: of the war.
Ten pchunt nly were eliminatcd as in the beginudn, of the wary su th=t"the *
average ability was lower than in the beginndil.

we But, Lovertueless, you were furced to accept Q071

A, Yeu, althuw h the quality of the material dininisned tuword the oua of the war,
we cuviatirued o erduwta 90p uf thu&; whe eatered. -

Qe Arc these pevple who cxtercd tha elemc"tary flgli; scuqals ¢r the pbunle il
ttr1*: adeuced flyiﬁ; BChuulS% Pocitn, T, NS Ne 1, i "R :

' -

L FLI 5 » " ¥ s = r‘-

A, They cut 10% in the prlnar} course ; not in the advarecdd: cLurse.

G 11 the quthed cgursu, thby qualiiled evarybouy that untur d 5y S !

P : o ’
‘ ]

A, a8 a’rule thay didnlt cux amg, buﬁ theére wes s Liceptlun, ir‘tnb aava Cci :

trainin: cuurse. . P 2
i " : .t - '
Q. In the advanced trziiing ecurse thepre were substantially mc’ washoits?® ‘
By : - <% - i ' ra T % | 1 X : ¥ k- )

A, That is ri-ht.

L |

. Nuw .ne other thlhh tidt we havelﬁt cuvered. - Were 'there auyilgsséé”fur'uther_f
reascns siuch as accidents, siclkiess, ete? - S -

A, The ten percent includes all cuees. - .. jon oK ER
&+ Physical cuor dltlu“,.disabllltg' aﬂciqentg? erythingTL . " SR

!-' e o ; P *

A. The teun pereent uivides intu catesuriest accicdents or sickness, less that cne
percent) cver nine perceat, unsuitability.- Accidents during the primary _
perivd were pracbmcally-vil curin.” the advanced tralﬂlﬁb ﬁé-lgét'ghe ur twi
per claaa. % ¥ e 4 f C | |

' I -
[ 3

xe  Ohe ub th per class—a class of 150017

- '] R | - 1 Pt f
; L - =¥ o ¥ i . o - & , ¥ 3 L 4 . -
‘ 4 = F - ‘ 2 o, i L | -y x - & H ] - P

A. wWe would have uie aceiGent per-unit-within -tiae class~-ten wiits withiﬂ-}he“ ' :
clase—-—s. that there would be ten or 15 in a class of 1500. Y

% In the latter stages through the Kyoiko -Hikotai and prior to the stage of
the Rensei Hikctai, 1s that 1t?

S Ty A Y A b iy e e G
¥y, Sl o o e I P Bt T % Ceghal V20 A, ST R e S L Sy  Fa R 5 3 i
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Interrogation #249 (Cont'd)

Ay Up to the end of 1943, the system of training ineluded fifst the
primary. course and the secund ecovurse in the Kycil-Hikotai. s They changed the .
syetem in the beginning of 194+ to classify intc tihreesd the first, primary
trainin;! secund, so-called Kyoiku Hikotal, and the third called Reusel Kikctai,

&. Now, was the accident rate in the Reusei Hikctai: iawadd ,ﬁhe dndrof the
war n:n..gher tha.n it wag' in the Kyoiku. Eikotai d.urin,.... the game period‘i -

h. .

i. Tes tha.t‘s r:._,ht st s . o sl

(s Apprexinately wha'b was the acc:.d.ent rate in the B.euaei Hlku‘bal in
194 to 1945 during the time they were cperating? < .

A, Here is an example’ In 19:i4 there were 1500 cases of accident, includ-
ing all types, sven the very minute defects—for example, a whedl-—including
minor damage t¢ a plane where: there was n¢ injury--including all accidents.

This is in 1944, and in Japan proper and Scuthern Asia; in all of the Japanese

A Air Forces it was 1500, Out of 1500, they had 300 cases in the primary course
and Kyoiku Hikotal and Reuseil Hikotal of which 50 were in the primary, 100 in
t.he Kyoiku Hlk:utai and 150 in the Reuaei Hikuta.i

oy .Ja.s there any cha.ns*e in those a.ccn.dent ra.tea—-the percent of accide
in training elther in the primary ur the Xy.iku Hikotai or the Renseil Hikote.l
between the beginning of the war and the end of the warl

A, JYes, ihere éaa a 'tr'eme'nd.ous‘ chane;e.-
(Col MaTSUMAE and Maj MARUTA at this point cinsulted and prepared a graph indi-

, cating that the total repurted accidents suffered by aircrzft in the Japanese -
Army air Forces: frum 1940 tu 1945 -, inecluding minor acclde te, wasias follows}

1940 ' | 300

WaL . b . 400

1942 500

. 1943 . .~ 870

194 . 1500

1945 1300 (up to 12 -ct'llg_'lJ.St 1945)

(Ccl thSUmu e..«:plained tha.t the f imares 1ncluded accidents reported. to Xoku |
Hombu only and that ordinarily an accident would be reported only if =& replace-.
ment was required or the airplane had to be sent te¢ a shop for repair.)

Q. You said, as I understand it, that the Japanese Army Air Force, at the .
begiuuving of the war, had 3000 trained pilots attached tc tactical units and 1000
trained pilote serving as instructors in 'the training organization.  You also
said that in Octuber of 1943 the pilots situation became criticaly that it was
therefore necessary to reorganige the training progran and to cut down the
number of hours which were given to studeat pilots. Aocproximately how many
pilote did yuu have assigned t¢ tactical unite in October 19437

A, 4t the time of October 1943 there were 2500 pilute in the units and
in® trainingz echools——~that nmeans inetructors alhid assistarks-—one thousand. The

2500 figure net only 80% of the demand four pilots by all.air units,- The .
nunber of units was becoming biscer and bigzer so tha.t we could ounly supply up

to 80%; the demand was bigger than the supply, by | .,

Q.. Was the reason for the.demand an increase. in . aircraft producti.n or
was it lo.sses which had 'been Bu.atained. in the Solomons campai.m?

Ay The most importa.nt rea.aon was the. ecale of. operatlona as & whole——
Southern Pacific, Northern Pacific,.all theatres of war——the scale of cperatiius
was becuiilly bl ;-er and bigoer. Tha.t wvas of meet importance and secund,  after
the Suvlomons battle the arny Air Forces cucuperated with the Navy air Foeces.

we <+ other words, in Octuber of 1943 the Jana‘;eaé ATHY Alr Force cuntem-
plated expandiaz its operata.ona and. couperating with the Naw in the Scloumone

canpddgn?

. . - . 4 i S .
s " 4 -T ® 8 T s o I £
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Interrcgation §#249 (Cont'c) } ,'

‘,J;'L- YBB. o : ‘ - _ . _- : o
. ’ : "‘.'. . ” 1

of the JapHnese army air Force during the first year

}. Were operations _ |
19ﬁ2+—féger’ourtailed;because of a .shortage cof

of the war---this is the yeal
pilote? AL SN

[

4. Yeg. because of the shortage of pilots 2s well as plenes. Not only the

pilots, ‘but shortazes in Both pild'ts ‘and plenes., For example, we had such an
experience in 1943t we héd olanned t0 sond Army air Force:units to the Bolowmons
arcg, but. because of“theﬂshortage'qflpilots.énd plenes WC didn't ‘carry out this
plan, anktil aftor -October 1942, ‘so that it wes delayed. ancther experience wes
that of CGaleutta, Jndiat the plen to attack Calcutta in the niddle of October
1942 was orohibited-—hot permitted by Gencral Headquarters—-—-only because of

t1: shortag. of pilcts end plencs. That. 1= ona-of,the-plans which wesn't carried

O'llt. B gy T
Qe Whon did you first hit: Calcuttal

A8 the rosult of deoteching
Solomens, the remai.der
srall attack, ‘far from

A. The plan was originally on o big scalc.
moet of the pilots 2nd planes for the campalgn in the
in Burme wss very small. We cdid cerry out, only ouce, 2
the origirel plan. -~ -~~~ = : g o, T o " o

: ‘ % T ' i - : ’ ' : . X -
Qs Was the shortage of planes considared mopc-scrioué.than,thv siorteso

of pilots,. cr was the shortezo of pilots‘conaidcrdd roras gsoricus then the short—

age of nlenes? What wes the limiting foctox?

- & : _ c ¥ ’ ’ ; ;
A.. Planes were mere sericus th-n pilotes,

|

-

G a8 I understand it, aftor Octcber 1946 yocu ~xpanded your trainiig .
evogran in view nf the shertago of pilots. &t about &he seme time, as I uncor-
stard it. the productien of aircraft wes 2lsc exmended--is thnt correct?

A. Y-s, you are right. In additiﬁn,'ﬁhe loss in New Guinca wes vnry,
vory big. . hge e s 2 ' |

- G. Loss of pldneé ar oilete?

#i' ‘ Plallas 5

. TYou lost more plenes thon pilots in Now Guin2? - SR
ae Ycs, 2and it was a vital prcblom at that timo. . '

g+ Sc that in april cf 1944; at tho tino of ghe loes of Hhl andie, you. -

nad ncre pilsts than you had plenes? -

A. Yea, you ars rizht; there wes a shortaze of lai0s. Espoclally aftor -
1544, it buoanc iwoet serious. The cirpleic problem beceane moTo soricus,

.n.pri 1
snd nor., than pilcets, sepocially after april 1944.

m’:‘ I’ ¥

L% tris ~time, hewever, you were crcornad because yeu hed hed tc cut
eiven t~ pil.te, is thet corrocti You hed olonty of-
falling ¢if, 1is thet the correot gituatimn?'

Qe
d~wn the time in trainiing
oili ts, but their quality wes

n. Your u.dorstaunding is right. Inladiitiohtww.axpacted nmorc prodéucticn
cf .lancs =~ wo had. big pléns fer supnlying nore pile tg—~——s2y sbout 6000
but afterwerie wo found thet planc productinn Bocang worse cnd woree, aud we
cut the awbor of treiness. The last of the thris class e in 1944 was.tut fron

s propnsed 6500 to 4000, ' ' .

(Col MaTSUMAE drew-a pencil rrach -indicatinz that the actual oreduction-ct . -, -
aircraft fell substentizlly %elow the pla-ned prcductisn of aircreft; whereas’ the
actual preductisn of pilcts more soarly kept pees with tac olemmad. production of

oiluts.) o Wy
- G. In other wrds, you heve previsusly 2iven twe reaenis f-r the reductisn

irn the number ~f pilots trained in 19443 shertage of fuel. sud: shortage of '

tpaininz aircraft. Now ycu ~re ~dding o third rqescnt The oxistenece of mere

pilcts than crmbat planes?

-
wloa 1 S -
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Intorrcegetiocn 7249 (C-nt'd) %

A, Yes, and thc shortage cf trainers £s a result of tho shortage cf pro-

&udti i 8C that’numb@rs 2 and 3 run intc the same ro2solle

G. Did the air attacks on the Philippines which begen absut the firstof

September 1944 heve any effoct upon the trainine units which were operating in

the Philipnires? " f .. S e TR e B.ArY

first, tc attack the allied

Novy ~1r Forces © Sacond, Jap-
had te be located——

A. There were fcur changes in our tacticsa:?
magk Fcree with thée cocperaticn of the Jepanese
ancse bombers, which are nct sc powerfuvl agelnst carriers,
cr relecated~--in Borneo, Suma.tre.  Malaya, etc, Peyond the ranze ~f carriers
Third, disneraal had tc Yo carried out; and Fourth, mads employmecit ef firhter
planes, nct by sindle grcups, had to b carried rut against carricrs. .

Q. Thcse wore the lesscns, 1 take it, which ycu learned as a rusult of
those carrier strikes. Now whet I really mcant rather than thet was: there
wore certain training units in the Philipoines and I thought that they were
either compelled to meve or they atopned their training, or they suffercd losses,
ad I wanted tc kucw what effect that had upon, the training unite end upcn the

Jepanese training prcgran in-general?

%

e PMirst of all, thcea training units in the Philippines were fcreced to

. meve to Malaya, Java, and tc French Indc=Chine. Secondlypy gpeciel training was

given in the lessons learned in the.carrier attocks. After auzust 1944 we
trainines uwnlits, .

exnected attack by sllied cerriers saud began b rcve the

Q. after the invasicn of Leyte Which tock plase on 20-21 October 1944,
ware any pilcts vwho hed been trained in the Philippines cr in the erea scuth
«f the Philippines ever breught beck to Japan T brought ncrth of the area 1n
whick they were training’andfattached tc units in the Jggan.based:ﬂir.Fcrcet
In other words, after-the invasion of Leyte, did the training ever nroduce pllovs
whe flew for the Jepancss alr Frreos in other than the scuthern arca’l

transfer cr tc replace these oilets frop, the

ae. There wsme ¢ idea to
svon after the iavesicn of Leyto.

Fhilipnines snd cther scuthern areas tc Jajan,

o SO cther werds, the invasira of ﬁé§te cut thcse'units'ﬁff frcm tho nerth?

A. No, pleinly net. We intended t¢ use thenm in soeraticns in tho g~uth,
elways. | |
0. Before the invasion cf Leyte, was it ever intended tc use »ilcts who

were being trainéd in tho Fhilinvines and in the sruthern aros auy plsce out-
side the scuthern arcal ' '

train the oilcte in the area 10
excenticas—~~that is, the best
sascn for having the training
+f fuel.

- s as a rule they hed a seb poelicy U
which they wore gcing to be assigned. Only a few
>ilote---were sent to Japan &s instruct(re. The r
units in the south was that tgpy'were'clnse to the spurce

e W&z there ever any ‘policy in the Japanes? air Frree tc rotate pilets
“ile back to Jzpan for rosti

ani'briug-thoee“who had fouzht for 2 l-ng wh
A.. Yes, we had such & plan,:ﬁut'it was not carried cut, In ctaer wcrds,
uilots were sent ¥ack. to Japan in case they lest their »nlane or the yype of

plane nad changed, t¢ bring beck new types of plene or new plenes. about one
monthe lcave was given IcC those pilotes when they care bock to Japail.

Q. Was therc ever aay limitaxiﬁn.placed by thé'Jépénese-nrmy upci, the
length cf service in combet that the pilcts should havel

H

all, Of .course we théughﬁ thet it night be

A. They had nc regulation at
thority to carry out such cecessaly

better ts have such a regulation, with au
rest or leave.

Q. But there never wes.such 2, reculation?

A ;Tﬁéy haﬂ.ip-regulation at all. Eheylwanted gsuch ajplan'ﬁut'had never

boen able tc¢ put it intec effect, .
N e




Interrogation #249 (Cont'd) 0 g L fw

Ge "They"-smesning the giluts-—vented it; or tho 4th air arny, cor vhet?

aAe The Staff cfficurs of Keku Hombu as well as tho Scuthorn army and I
Mot el Adame o ot T 0N Y WY e W e TR RS

Major MaRUTaAs:The Ceommander and senl r c«fiicers at Kolu Hombu also h:d
such idees, e @ . Ak

Q. Why didu't thoy put the idez into cffect? 7

- A. No replacemcntss Inadfiti~n the Janenésd ~1r Forces were s¢ busy
»nd were constantly beinz driven all the time from the vory begiming tn the
end 2nd even after the war.,

Q. Y'u said that in 1945, at the cnd ~f March, 3000 qualified pilote——
cr rather, 90% of 3000 aporoximetely, or sbcut 2700 pilotew~comiloted thoir
flight training and were ready to be aseisned to units for combat. Hew meny
of thoso 2700 wilots were assigned tc rezular-tacticel wnits and how meay to
the special attack units? ' - | '

Le B30% of 2700 were essizned tc special attack units. The others, 70%
went to cther units——air defense units end ordinary operztive units.

Q. Aunsther group of pllots graduated from flying schecl con aporoximately
31 July; is that correct-—eay 3700 cf then. Actually how nreny of then were
agsizned to special attack units =nd how mony to tactivel uaits? ok

A. The sane proportidii.

e We cen add these fimures together and find out how meay pilcts the
Japeanesc forces had at the end of the war, But all these firures are aplirex-
inate, and we wonder if you can state’ the number of pilots that they hed at
the end of the war--how many in tacticel unite, hew many in special ettack
uaits, heow many jnstructors, =t the end cf the war? -

A. after all, therc wore sone casuelties. The ;rand total of pilots,
iaeluding even General pilotes BBOO grand totald The Ranikeze, 20003 tectical

2its end cthers, 5000; in treicing groups and schools, including instructcors
end assistant instructérs, 1000; 800 in hosnitals. The 5000 pilots in tactical
ond cther units were also traincd for special attack; so if you call the 2000
silote Special Attack pilcts, you must also cell those 5000 pilots i.. speciel
attack units. The pilots in special attack units were those trained only for
spceiel attack. I might say these 2000 pilots in so=called spacial attzck
uinits were trained cnly es far es primary training for diving and no nerej in
goneral, further treaiuing was. to have been given 1o 211l pilots; but ia certain
cases when we were suffering frem searcity of petrcl and planes, they were

only trained for the primary diving and nc mure, | ; '

Qe _How-mény hours of treining were given to @he‘;ilqts in the spbcia; -
attack units? g _

Ae. Minimu, 70 heurs; averege, 1005 naximmn, 300, for the leaders in
the special attack uanites : .

Q. This moraing we asked you how many houvrs you gave t- pilleats ngar thie
end of the yer before they were essigned to tacticel urits, and the =nswear, .
I believe ycu:rgeve, Was 100 hoursy is that ccrroct? ' : |

As Yes, - 120 or 130 hours.

~ Ge There.is rne'more thing: What. wvere the totel casualties of JAAF
pilote from the beginning tc the endl

hAe Total casualties during the period is 11,200.:

(0 Hoﬁ nany would yo'ﬁ have t- add if you tock-into ccnsiderati-n the
menbers of 2ir croewst Navigators, Beomberdiers, Guaners, etc? '

Ay 4 large numbers (Ccl MATSUMAE agreed to furnish these figures et a
leter date when he hed time to accurstely complle seme).

~ Dl
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In’berroga.tion #49 (Gont'd) all” S P

e

1

We'd 1ike tojask the Cclonel a little more about hie ﬁareerl 'Whéﬁ'did

you learn to fly?

A. In 1937 at Tokorozawe, then Hémmat,eu. I started treininf in December
1937. i S - e & , . e .
G When did you graduzte? E
a. Novembor 1938. s
Q.:'- thre _;I'eré ,;,op; é.eéigned for duty in_i_Ngvem‘bér_ After you finished fIizht
training? L S |
Ao Fourth Sental at Tq.chiara,i.
Q,. What tyjpe of a,ircraft did you fly when you were attached to the Fourth?
.a.‘.. Type 97 .uiaht Bonber. it | I
Qe lWhail di'ctl the Fourth Hikosental get KIf-é..-Bs?,._ | :
ES 1939. ‘ i =
” _ﬁ-How 1ong were yru ‘with the Fourth Hikose;;tal? g P S
A. DSeven months; | '
K. and theﬂ where did you go? ey | yoa
4. General Staff Office, Steff Headquarters, in Tokyo.
Qe Durln..o what period were you a.t the Genera.l Ste:-:*ff Headquarters?
A. Until Octodb.r 194l. Then 1 went to General .n.rny Headquerters, southern
region. \ . ' | i
i Boare vas, Sakd : N AR
:A;.S&igeﬁ; after#ﬁrds;mpﬁed‘tq Singqpqré. | §
.‘ ({.,._:Wha£ wéfe yoﬁr 'd.uties fwhén _yo{;. went j;:.;: Saigént" y
',.ﬂ..r. .nlr Oj')'eration.e 'éé;akﬁion."_.' " _ ._ff
é, At théﬁ,tiée did yaq‘havé agyplégg,fo:;éﬁeféyfbns_in Ma}aya?"
Ad Yes, sir. M |
Q * When d.id. you fornmla.tc, the plans-—-et what tin --whe'l you were e

Tokyo or when ycu were down there?l

Ao
Q.

.rh

Before I left To*kyo;;'

That :would- be in the sunmer of 1941?

iy

-

Thegdeternination of the pla.n wag gi'\z n in November 1941. The plan

wags formulated by September 1941 but was not put inte dffect witil December. I

The firet time I heard of it was at the end of October 194:1.

Of course the

studies were going' on before that date.

[i

But the firat tme you heard the stmies were to he put into" effect _

was in October?

&e

cial study started.in July.
ca. the nmiddle of-susust,.

Qe

| It wag Tether en  offi-
I .myscld went to Maleya to a.tudy the area the

i

I heard about the plan by the end of Octc'ber.

L. "
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Interreogation %249 (Gont'd) -

' Wherabcuts in Malaye 4il you =01
4 the Malay peninsula end Freneh Indo-Chin

First of all 1 inspccte heir cepseity for Japanese

A
and Thailend to inspect the airfields and d,etermin'? - e army sir Forecos
Alr Units; to the Saigzen arca, Bengkok arca. The apines ny :
were located in French Irdo-China, but not in Thalland. q
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